
 

Council Assembly 
Extraordinary Meeting 

 
This meeting is being called in accordance with 

council assembly procedure rules 3.1(c) 

 
Wednesday November 4 2009 at *8.00pm  

(or at the rise of the ordinary meeting whichever is the later) 
Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB 

*(Please note date and time) 
 

 

Councillors are summoned to attend a meeting of the Council to consider the 
business contained herein 

 
Annie Sheppard 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as 
the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an elderly 
dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you may claim an 
allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building access, 
translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Contact 
Lesley John on 020 7525 7228  or email: lesley.john@southwark.gov.uk; 
sean.usher@southwark.gov.uk  Webpage: http://www.southwark.gov.uk 
 
Date: October 23 2009 
 

 

Open Agenda



 

Council Assembly 
 

Wednesday November 4 2009 at 8.00pm  
(or at the rise of the ordinary meeting whichever is the later) 

Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB 
 
 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item No. Title Page No. 

 

 PART A - OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

1. PRELIMINARY BUSINESS 
 

 

1.1. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, MEMBERS OF THE 
EXECUTIVE OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

 

1.2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE 
MAYOR DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

1.3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

1.4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2. OTHER REPORTS 
 

 

2.1. CHANGES TO THE EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS REQUIRED 
UNDER THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007 

 

1 - 10 

 ANY OPEN ITEMS IDENTIFIED AS URGENT AT THE START OF THE 
MEETING 
 

 

 EXCLUSION MOTION (IF NECESSARY) 
 

 

 The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
council wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information: 
 
 “That under the access to information procedure rules of the 

Southwark constitution, the public be excluded from the meeting for 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in section(s) 1 – 7 of 
paragraph 10.4 of the procedure rules.” 

 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

 PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS 
 

 

 ANY CLOSED ITEMS IDENTIFIED AS URGENT AT THE START OF 
THE MEETING 
 

 

  
 

 

 
Date:  October 23 2009 
 



 

 
 
 

 

  

 
Item No.  

2.1 
Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
November 4, 2009 

Meeting Name: 
Council Assembly 
 

Report title: 
 

Changes to executive arrangements required 
under the Local Government & Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007 

Ward(s) or groups affected: 
 

All 

From: 
 

Strategic Director of Communities, Law & 
Governance 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That council assembly notes the proposals attached to this report as Appendix 

A. 
 
2. That council assembly resolves to adopt the proposals to change executive 

arrangements. 
 
3. That council assembly agrees the changes in the constitution in Appendices B 

and C to take effect on the third day after the local government elections 2010. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
4. The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (“the Act”) 

requires local authorities to amend their executive arrangements and move to 
either a strong leader or elected Mayor model.  At council assembly on May 20, 
2009 the council agreed to go out to consultation with the strong leader model, 
as the preferred option.  It also agreed that the monitoring officer, following the 
consultation and in consultation with the constitutional steering panel, should 
draw up formal proposals for future executive arrangements, advertise them 
and present them to council assembly for approval. 

 
5. The Act states the authority must take reasonable steps to consult the electors 

in its area and other interested parties.  The period of consultation, which 
lasted 12 weeks ended on September 21, 2009.  There were no responses to 
the consultation. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
6. The Act states that a resolution of council assembly is required in order for the 

authority to make the required change in governance arrangements.  Council 
assembly would also have to agree final changes to the constitution. 

 
7. In drawing up the proposals, the local authority must consider the extent to 

which the proposals, if implemented, would be likely to assist in securing 
continuous improvement in the way in which the local authority's functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness.  The proposals would streamline decision-making, as well as 
increasing the transparency and accountability of decision making. 

 
8. In addition the new executive arrangements will involve changes to the 

constitution.  Appendix B has proposed amendments to the Articles and Part 3.  

Agenda Item 2.1
1



 

 
 
 

 

  

Appendix C has proposed amendments in the council assembly procedural 
rules and executive procedures rules. 

 
9. Following the agreement of council assembly to the proposed changes a 

further advertisement will be required.  The monitoring officer will organise this.  
 
Resource implications 
 
10. The proposed changes in governance do have resource implications however it 

is expected that these will be contained within existing budgets.  
 
Community Impact Statement 

 
11. The proposed changes in governance should enhance community engagement 

through better leadership and clarity of roles. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Local Government & Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007 

160 Tooley Street, 
London, SE1 2TZ  

Norman Coombe 
57678 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Item 
Appendix A. Proposals 
Appendix B Proposed changes to Articles and Part 3 
Appendix C Proposed changes to Procedure Rules 
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Graham Love 
Report Author Norman Coombe 

Version Final 
Dated October 22 2009 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / 

EXECUTIVE MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 

Strategic Director of Communities, Law 
& Governance  

No Incorporated 

Finance Director No No 
Executive Member  Yes/No Yes/No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team October 22 2009 
 
 
 

2



 

 
 
 

 

  

 
APPENDIX A 

PROPOSALS 
 

Changes to governance arrangements 
 
The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 requires the council 
to make changes to its current governance and decision making arrangements. The 
new arrangements will come into operation immediately after the elections in May 
2010. 
 
The Council can choose from two options: 
 

1. an elected Mayor and cabinet, or 
2. an executive leader and cabinet (described by government as the 'strong leader' 
model).  

 
1. Elected Mayor and Cabinet 
 
Under the elected Mayor option, the electorate would vote for a Mayor who would hold 
office for a period of four years. Once elected the Mayor would be responsible for all 
executive functions and would decide which of these functions were going to be 
delegated to other cabinet members, local committees or council officers. The Mayor 
would appoint a cabinet of a minimum of two and a maximum of nine councillors and 
the Mayor and cabinet would take decisions on executive functions.  
 
2. Executive leader and Cabinet 
 
The executive leader and cabinet model is similar to Southwark’s current leader and 
executive arrangements. There would continue to be a leader of the council and a 
cabinet of at least two but no more than nine other councillors. However, much more 
power would be placed in the hands of the leader of the council than at present. The 
leader would be responsible for all executive functions, and would decide which of 
these functions were going to be delegated to other cabinet members, local 
committees or council officers. The cabinet would be appointed by the leader and not 
by the whole council as at present. Another change to the current arrangements is that 
the leader is elected by the whole council for a period of four years at the first meeting 
of the council after the 2010 elections.  
 
Proposals for changes in Governance in Southwark 
 
1) The London Borough of Southwark adopts the leader and cabinet executive 
(England) model with effect from the 3rd day after the May 2010 elections, as set out 
in the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended); 
 
2) No governance referendum is held prior to adoption of the leader and cabinet 
executive (England) model: 
 
3) The leader of the council ("the Leader") is elected by full council at its post-election 
annual meeting (or if the council fails to elect a leader at that meeting, at a subsequent 
meeting of the council). The term of office of the leader starts on the day of his election 
as leader and ends on the day of the next post-election annual meeting, unless he is 
removed from office or resigns, ceases to be a member, or is disqualified from being a 
councillor before that day; 

3



 

 
 
 

 

  

 
4) The leader determines the size of and appoints between 2 and 9 members of the 
council to the cabinet in addition to him or herself, allocates any areas of responsibility 
to them, and may remove them from the cabinet at any time; 
 
5) The leader determines the scheme of delegation for the discharge of the executive 
functions of the council; 
 
6) The council’s executive arrangements are to provide for the council to have the 
ability to remove the leader by ordinary resolution on notice during his or her term of 
office. If the council passes such a resolution to remove the leader, it will elect a new 
leader at that or a subsequent meeting; 
 
7) The leader appoints one of the members of the cabinet to be his or her deputy, to 
hold office until the end of the term of office as leader (unless that person resigns as a 
deputy leader, ceases to be a member of the council or is disqualified, or is removed 
from office by the leader); 
 
8) The leader may, if he or she thinks fit, remove the deputy leader from office, but 
must then appoint another person in his or her place; and  
 
9) If for any reason the leader is unable to act or the office of leader is vacant, the 
deputy leader must act in his or her place. If the deputy leader is unable to act or the 
office is vacant, the cabinet must act in the leader’s place or arrange for a member of 
the cabinet to do so. 
 
Transitional provisions 
The delegation scheme will continue after the 2010 elections until altered or confirmed 
by the leader. 
 
The allocation of functions under Section 13 (3) (b) of the Local Government Act 2000 
(those which may be the responsibility of the executive but do not have to be - i.e. 
where there is a choice) will continue as for the current council, until altered by the 
leader or council under the new governance arrangements. 
 
Timetable 
 
November 4 2009 Special meeting of full council to pass the resolution to 

adopt proposals to changes to executive arrangements 
 

May 2010 Local Government Elections 
 

On the third day after the 
local government 
elections 2010  
 

Implementation of the amended executive 
arrangements in the constitution. 
 

May 19 2010 Post-election annual meeting at which the leader of the 
council will be elected and term of office commences 
 

 

4



 

 
 
 

 

  

APPENDIX B 

PROPOSED CHANGES TO ARTICLE 1 AND PART 3 

Article 1 
 
1.5  Changes to the constitution  

 a) Subject to b) below, any changes to the constitution which can only be 
approved by the council assembly will require the prior consideration of 
the proposal by the constitutional steering panel.  

 
b) The constitution and its appendices will be changed as follows:  

    
3.  Who takes 

decisions?  
Any executive function or local choice function to 
be discharged by the executive Agreed by the 
leader  
Any other function Agreed by council assembly. 
Exceptions – monitoring officer to: (1) update list of 
plans and strategies to be agreed by executive (in 
Part 3B) (2) update the details of executive 
members (3) maintain Part 3S: Appointments to 
outside bodies, as required.  

 

Article 6 – The Executive 

6.1 Role 

The executive will carry out all of the local authority’s functions which are not the 
responsibility of any other part of the local authority, whether by law or under this 
constitution. The role and functions of the executive are set out in part 3B of this 
constitution. 

6.2 Form and composition 

The executive will consist of the leader together with no less than two and no more 
than nine councillors appointed to the executive by the leader council assembly. 

6.3 Leader 

The leader will be a councillor elected to the position of leader by the council 
assembly. The leader will hold office until: 

a) he/she resigns from the office by giving notice in writing to the monitoring officer 

b) he/she is suspended from being a councillor under part III of the Local Government 
Act 2000 (although he/she may resume office at the end of the period of suspension) 

c) he/she is no longer a councillor 

5



 

 
 
 

 

  

d) the end of the municipal year in which he/she is elected to the position of leader 
save that the council assembly may remove the leader from office at an earlier date 

de) he/she is removed from office by resolution of the council assembly 

e) his/her term of office ends. 

The leader’s term of office shall commence from the day of his/her election, which will 
be held at the first annual meeting of the council following the ordinary elections or if a 
vacancy occurs, the next meeting of the council and will end at the start of the first 
annual meeting of the council following the next ordinary elections.  

6.4 Other executive members 

Other executive members shall be appointed by the leader and hold office until: 

a) they resign from office by giving notice in writing to the leader and the monitoring 
officer 

b) they are suspended from being councillors under part III of the Local Government 
Act 2000 (although they may resume office at the end of the period of suspension) 

c) they are no longer councillors  

d) the end of the municipal year in which they are elected to the position of executive 
member save that the council may remove them from office, either individually or 
collectively, at an earlier date  

de) they are removed from office by resolution of the council they are removed by the 
leader. 

If an executive member ceases to be a member of the executive because of reasons 
(a) to (e) above, the leader has the discretion, subject to Article 6.2, as to whether or 
not to appoint a replacement. 

During the course of the year the leader has the discretion to change executive 
portfolios. 

The leader also has the discretion to change the membership of executive committees 
during the course of the year. 

The leader shall immediately communicate any such changes to the monitoring officer 
who shall circulate a formal notification to all members. 

If an executive member is absent for a significant period of time, the leader has 
discretion as to whether he/she appoints an assistant to the executive member to 
discharge specific responsibilities in their absence. 

These responsibilities will not include formal decision making. In exercising his/her 
discretion the leader must consult with the monitoring officer. If after consulting with 
the monitoring officer the leader confirms a decision to appoint an assistant the leader 
will advise the council of the responsibilities allocated to the assistant and the period 
for which the assistant will act. 

6



 

 
 
 

 

  

Any changes to executive members shall take effect after five working days unless an 
objection signed by at least five members is lodged, in which case the matter shall be 
referred to the next council assembly. 

6.5 Deputy Leader of the Council  

The leader shall appoint one of the members of the executive to be his/her deputy.  

The leader may, if he thinks fit, remove the deputy leader from office. Where a 
vacancy occurs in the office of deputy leader, the leader must appoint another person 
in his/her place.  

The deputy leader shall hold office until: 

a) he/she resigns from office by giving notice in writing to the leader and the monitoring 
officer 

b) he/she is suspended from being a councillor under part III of the Local Government 
Act 2000 (although they may resume office at the end of the period of suspension) 

c) he/she is no longer a councillor 

d) he/she is removed by the leader. 

6.6 Non availability of Leader and Deputy Leader 

If for any reason the leader is unable to act or the office of leader is vacant, the deputy 
leader must act in his place.  

If for any reason:  

a) the leader is unable to act or the office is vacant; and  

(b) the deputy leader is unable to act or the office of deputy leader is vacant,  

the executive must act in the leader’s place or must arrange for a member of the 
executive to act in his place.  

6.7 Who may make executive decisions 

The executive functions of the council may be discharged by: 

a) the executive as a whole 

b) a committee of the executive 

c) an individual member of the executive 

d) community councils 

e) an officer 

f) joint arrangements 

g) another local authority. 

7



 

 
 
 

 

  

6.8 Delegation by the leader 

At the annual meeting of the council, the leader will present to the council a written 
record of delegations made by him/her for inclusion in the council’s scheme of 
delegation at part 3 of this constitution.  This schedule of executive delegation does 
not require adoption by council assembly.  The document presented by the leader will 
contain the following information about executive functions in relation to the coming 
year: 

a) the extent of any authority delegated to executive members individually, including 
details of the limitation on their authority 

b) the terms of reference and constitution of such executive committees as the leader 
appoints, the names of executive members appointed to them, the vice-chair of the 
committees and the frequency of its meetings 

c) the nature and extent of any delegation of executive functions to community 
councils, any other authority or any joint arrangements and the names of those 
executive members appointed to any joint committee for the coming year 

d) the nature and extent of any delegation to officers with details of any limitation on 
that delegation, and the title of the officer to whom the delegation is made. 

6.7 The council’s scheme of delegation and executive functions 
The council’s scheme of delegation will be subject to adoption by the council assembly 
and may only be amended by the council assembly. The scheme of delegation is set 
out in part 3 of this constitution. 

6.9 Key tasks of executive members 

Executive members will participate in the executive and implement agreed policies by 
taking responsibility for any portfolio allocated by the authority, including providing a 
lead on and proposing new policy, strategy, programming, budget and service 
standards, and leading performance review, as well as acting as spokespersons within 
and outside the authority for the service/function. 

 

8



 

 
 
 

 

  

Part 3A: Council Assembly 
 
Matters reserved for decision 
 
The following matters are reserved to the council assembly for decision: 
 
1. Electing the Mayor. 
 
2. Adopting the local authority’s code of conduct. 
 
3. Electing the leader and the executive. 
 
4. Establishing committees and community councils. 
 
5. Agreeing and amending terms of reference for committees and community councils 
except for executive functions. 
 
 
Please note that the footnote to 3 would be removed. 
 

9



 

 
 
 

 

  

APPENDIX C 
 

Proposed Changes to Council Assembly Procedural Rules 
 

4.4 LEADER AND EXECUTIVE 
1. The leader shall be appointed at the first annual meeting of the council to be held 
after ordinary elections take place annual meeting of the council or, at an ordinary or 
extraordinary council meeting as necessary. 
2. In addition to the leader, between one and nine other councillors shall be 
appointed at the annual meeting of the council or at an ordinary or 
extraordinary council meeting as necessary, to serve as members of the 
executive. 
 
2. The leader shall appoint between two and nine other councillors at the first annual 
meeting of the council to be held after ordinary elections take place or at an ordinary or 
extraordinary council meeting as necessary, to serve as members of the executive. 
 
3. The leader shall appoint one member of the executive at the first annual meeting of 
the council to be held after ordinary elections take place or at an ordinary or 
extraordinary council meeting as necessary, to serve as deputy leader. Where a 
vacancy occurs in the office of deputy leader, the leader must appoint another person 
in his place.  
 
4. The leader shall have power to vary the allocation of portfolios within the executive 
on an interim basis. The leader shall also have power to designate an executive 
member as lead executive member in respect of any policy matter that is cross-cutting. 
In the event that an executive member ceases to be a member of the executive, the 
leader shall have the discretion as to whether or not to appoint a replacement. 
 
5. Other political groups represented on the council may nominate a councillor to act 
as their leader. The leader of the largest opposition political group represented on the 
council shall be known as the leader of the opposition and shall act as the 
spokesperson for the opposition on all matters of general policy and business. 
 
Executive Procedures Rules 
 
2.3 Quorum 
a) The quorum for a meeting of the executive shall be one quarter of the total number 
of members of the executive or 3, whichever is larger, including the leader or deputy 
leader; except where the leader is unable to act or the office is vacant; and the deputy 
leader is unable to act or the office of deputy leader is vacant. 
b) The quorum for a meeting of an executive committee shall be one quarter of the 
total number of members of the executive on the committee or 3, whichever is larger. 
 
 
 

10



Last Updated: 
Sept 2009 

COUNCIL ASSEMBLY AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) (FULL LIST) 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2009-10 

NOTE:  Original held by Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to  
  Lesley John Tel: 020 7525 7228 

ONE COPY TO ALL UNLESS OTHERWISE 
STATED 

Copies To Copies 

Councillors (All)  

Political Assistants 

Dan Falchicov, Liberal Democrat Political 
Assistant 
John Bibby, Labour Group Political Assistant

Libraries 

Albion / Dulwich / Newington / Local Studies 
Library 

Press 

Southwark News 
South London Press 

Corporate Management Team

Deborah Collins 
Gill Davies 
Richard Rawes 
Romi Bowen  
Duncan Whitfield  
Susannah White 

1 each 

1
1  

6

1 each 

2 

1 
1

6 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

Officers 

Ian Millichap 
Sonia Sutton 
Robin Campbell 

Constitutional Team 

(6 copies to Lesley John , 2nd Floor, 
Hub 4 Tooley Street and 34 copies to 
Lesley John, Town Hall Peckham) 

Trade Unions 

Roy Fielding, GMB 
Euan Cameron, Unison 
Tony O’Brien, UCATT 
Michael Davern, NUT 
James Lewis, NASUWT 
Pat Reeves, ATL 
Miss Sylvia Morris, NAHT 
Irene Bishop, SHA 
Mick Young TGWU 

Local M.P. 

Simon Hughes M.P. 

Others  

Shahida Nasim, Audit Commission, 
Room 32, 2nd Floor, Central House, 
Town Hall Complex 

Mr. Mark Roelofsen 

3 

1 
1 
1 

40 

9 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

1 

2 

1 

1 

Total:  139 

Agenda Annex
11


	Agenda
	2.1 Changes to the Executive Arrangements required under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007
	

